
BZA 03/23/09  Page 1 of 3 

Minutes: Russell Township Board of Zoning Appeals 
  Russell Town Hall 
  March 23, 2009 
 
Present: Steve Gokorsch, Chairman 
  Fred Cuffari 
  William Downing 
  Diana Steffen, Secretary 
 
Dr. Edith Lerner and Matthew Galemmo were absent with apologies.   
 
Also in attendance:  Ric Machnics, Zoning Inspector, and Kristina Port, Trustee, who 
arrived during the meeting.   
 
The Chairman called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
LAUREL SCHOOL  Conditional Use #380 
Annual Review of Environmental Management Plan 
 
In attendance on behalf of Laurel School were Mary Ann Pellerano, Director of Facilities 
Services, and Kathy Jankowski of Knight & Stolar, Inc.   
 
Ms. Jankowski stated that she submitted the Environmental Management Plan (E.M.P.) 
update to the Township and to its consultant, the Chagrin River Watershed Partners, on 
2/26/09.  The plan was reviewed by C.R.W.P. Program Associate Mindy Hayes who 
wrote her comments to Ms. Jankowski on 3/11/09.  Ms. Jankowski responded to these 
comments on 3/18/09 resulting in approval of the plan by C.R.W.P. on 3/18/09.   
 
Ms. Jankowski said most of the issues raised were due to a change in personnel.  There 
was less fertilizing and fewer inspections of the storm water system in 2008.  They have a 
new grounds manager who is aware of the importance of timely inspections of the storm 
water system and correct procedures for fertilizers and herbicides.  He will be expected to 
complete in detail the daily and monthly logs.  Mr. Downing asked who monitors the 
personnel for follow-through on procedures.  Ms. Pellerano explained that they report to 
her directly.  She said before the use of any new chemical she checks with Ms. 
Jankowski.  There are two long-term employees at the site who are very reliable.  Now 
that she lives in Russell, Ms. Pellerano said she is at the site much more often.   
 
Mr. Gokorsch asked about the amount of fertilizer used in 2008.  Ms. Jankowski said that 
because half as much fertilizer was used they are evaluating soil tests taken and will 
determine the need for 2009.  She said they plan to review the E.M.P. midway through 
the season to see that they are on track.  They will also review procedures with the staff 
on site.   
 
Mr. Gokorsch asked if there were any serious erosion issues with Griswold Creek.  Ms. 
Jankowski said there is always some erosion near Fairmount Road where it meanders, but 



BZA 03/23/09  Page 2 of 3 

they have put in plantings near the house by Fairmount Road.  There are no erosion areas 
farther down the creek.  They always try to protect both the creek and the bridge.   
 
Mr. Machnics stated he reviewed the E.M.P. and was concerned that nothing has been 
recorded regarding chemical application, fertilizers, nor invasive plants removal that has 
taken place in the area of the entrance to the campus.  Ms. Jankowski agreed to add this 
to the E.M.P.  Mr. Machnics had no other comments.   
 
Mr. Cuffari made the motion to approve the Environmental Management Plan as 
submitted, Mr. Downing seconded and the motion passed unanimously.   
 
MINUTES OF JANUARY 26, 2009 – Mr. Cuffari made the motion to accept the 
minutes as written, Mr. Gokorsch seconded and the motion passed unanimously by 2-0.  
Mr. Downing abstained due to his absence from that meeting.   
 
OTHER BUSINESS – Ms. Port asked some legal questions regarding the personal 
liability of the Zoning Inspector and members of the board.  Mrs. Steffen was asked to 
check on this.   
 
Mr. Gokorsch asked whether the gabion baskets installed by a resident on the west side of 
the Chagrin River just south of the bridge on S.R. 87 were causing erosion on the east 
side.  Mrs. Steffen reported that she had accompanied Amy Brennan, C.R.W.P., to the 
site, and Mrs. Brennan had not found any erosion, but she will write a report for the 
Township.  She did express concern that the baskets may fail in the future, and also that 
the river may erode land immediately downstream on the same side as the baskets.  She 
would have preferred to see a natural tree revetment rather than gabion baskets.  The 
resident had first contacted the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, which had no problem 
with installation of the baskets.  Mr. Gokorsch expressed concern that with the gabion 
baskets being so visible from both S.R. 87 and Hemlock Point Road, other residents may 
decide to do the same.  He felt there should be a regulation to deal with this issue.  Mrs. 
Steffen suggested it be a topic for the zoning workshop planned in the Fall.  She will 
investigate the legality of having a regulation.   
 
There being no other business, Mr. Downing moved to adjourn, Mr. Cuffari seconded 
and the meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Diana Steffen        Date  Steve Gokorsch     Date 
Secretary      Chairman 
 
 



BZA 03/23/09  Page 3 of 3 

 
bzamins039 


